
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION AGENDA 
SPECIAL MEETING 

 
September 22, 2022 

6:00 P.M. 
     
PLANNING & ZONING 
AGENDA   1) Call to Order 
    
    2) Roll Call/Determination of Quorum   
 
    3) Approval of Agenda 
 
    4) Approval of Minutes of the September 15, 2022 regular  
        meeting (pg 3-4) 
 
    5) Public Comments 
 
DISCUSSION ITEM 6) NB: Neighborhood Business District (pg 5-31) 
 
 
 
        
ADJOURNMENT OF 
PLANNING & ZONING 
 
Board members unable to attend should please contact City Hall in advance for a quorum determination 
at 582-8987. 
Individuals in need of assistance in attaining access to the meeting, please contact City Hall at 582-6515 
within 24 hours of the meeting time for special arrangements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1



SUPPLEMENT TO AGENDA 
 September 22, 2022 
 
 
MEETINGS:         1) Thursday, October 6, 2022. 
    Planning & Zoning Commission meeting at 6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers 
 
    Items on agenda: 
    Re-Zone Application – Brandon 90 Plaza Addition 
    Conditional Use Applications (2) – 100 & 112 S. Sandstone Avenue 
 
 
   2) Thursday, October 20, 2022. 
    Planning & Zoning Commission meeting at 6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers 
 
    Items on agenda: 
    Nothing at this time 
 
     
 
 
 

2



MINUTES 
 PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
 
 
The Brandon Planning & Zoning Commission met in regular session at 6:30 p.m. on September 
15, 2022 at the Brandon City Council Chambers.  
 
Roll call was taken.  Members present were Commissioners Thomas Nichols, Brookes Noem, 
Chuck Parsons and Alica Thiele.  Also present were Alderman Tim Jorgenson, Building Official 
Paul Clarke and City Administrator Bryan Read.  Absent: Commissioner Brian Heidbrink, 
Commissioner Rob Schoeneman, Mayor Harry Buck, City Engineer Tami Jansma and 
Development Director Patrick Andrews.   
 
Commissioner Parsons moved Commissioner Nichols seconded to approve the agenda.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Commissioner Nichols moved Commissioner Thiele seconded to approve the minutes of the 
September 1, 2022 regular meeting.  Motion carried. 
 
Robert Dykstra, Brandon Volunteer Fire Department Chief, was present for discussion.  Robert 
has concerns with the proposed side yard setbacks of 5’ for the villa homes in the R-2 Zoning 
District.   
 
Discussion held on allowing septic tanks in the R-1 zoning district under specified criteria.  A 
draft Ordinance was presented.  It was the consensus of the Commission to schedule a public 
hearing. 
 
Discussion held on individually platted lots surrounded by commonly owned space, as it relates 
to parking requirements and signs.  A draft Ordinance was presented.  Lee Schelling, 204 W. 
Elm Circle, was present for discussion.  It was the consensus of the Commission to schedule a 
public hearing. 
 
Discussion held on parking pad definition.  A draft Ordinance was presented.   It was the 
consensus of the Commission to schedule a public hearing. 
   
Discussion held on fence definition.  A draft Ordinance was presented.   It was the consensus 
of the Commission to schedule a public hearing. 
 
Discussion held on cooperative parking & shared parking.  A draft Ordinance was presented.  It 
was the consensus of the Commission to schedule a public hearing. 
    
Discussion held on R-2 amendments for villa homes.  A draft Ordinance was presented.  
Concerns with the proposed 5’ side yard setbacks and the ability to fight fires.  It was the 
consensus of the Commission to keep the side yard setbacks at 7’.   
 

33



Discussion held on a proposed Neighborhood Business District.  Mike Traylor, 613 N. Tamarac 
Avenue, was present for discussion.  Mike is opposed to the intention of placing businesses 
inside a residential area.  Riley Walz, 609 N. Tamarac Avenue, was present for discussion.  
Riley suggested having businesses in this district use the same materials as the residences around 
it, height restrictions same as a residential district, opposes a gas station.  Mike Toates, 500 E. 
Mayberry RFD Street, was present for discussion.  Mike prefers the property located at 600 N. 
Pasque Flower Trail stay residential.  Don DeJager, 504 E. Mayberry RFD Street, was present 
for discussion.  Don prefers the property located at 600 N. Pasque Flower Trail stay residential.  
Shawna Schipper, 601 N. Tamarac Avenue, was present for discussion.  Shawna asked if height 
restrictions and setback requirements could be placed in this district?  TJ Barthamn, 1016 S. 
Nicholas Avenue, was present for discussion.  TJ is one of the developers for the property 
located at 600 N. Pasque Flower Trail.  Don DeJager has concerns with additional traffic and 
lighting.  Commissioner Thiele mentioned the need for updating the Comprehensive Plan.  It 
was the consensus of the Commission to have a work session on this proposed zoning on 
Thursday, September 22, 2022 at 6:00pm.   
 
Discussion held on HI-Heavy Industrial Districts as it relates to the rear yard setback.  It was the 
consensus of the Commission to make the rear yard setback 10’ in the Heavy Industrial District , 
with the exception to increase to 25’ when adjacent to residential.  A public hearing will be 
scheduled to change this back.   
 
At 7:55 p.m. having no further business, Commissioner Nichols moved Commissioner Thiele 
seconded to adjourn the Planning & Zoning Commission meeting.  Motion carried. 
 
 

 
                                                    Respectfully Submitted, 

 
_____________________________    ______________________________ 
Melissa Labahn      Bryan Read 
Recording Clerk      City Administrator 

44



Aberdeen, SD

55



66



77



88



Belle Fourche, SD

99



1010



1111



��������	
����������������

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� !����������

"������	#����$�����%���%����$�&&����������������	#��#��'���
�()*�+*,-)./0)//1�2,340,54�,3�,64*61*1�7/0�389::�359:*�5/88*05,9:�961�/77,5*�1*;*:/<8*64�4=<,59::=�7/>61�,6�/0�91?95*64�4/�5/88*05,9:�961@/0�6*,-)./0)//1�90*93A��	#��#��B��&������ ���
�()*�7/::/C,6-�<0,65,<9:�>3*3�90*�<*08,44*1�,6�4)*�+D�2,340,54A�EA�F>3,6*33�3*0;,5*3�,65:>1,6-G�944/06*=3H�.96I3H�,63>0965*H�0*9:�*3494*�/77,5*3H�</349:�3494,/63H�50*1,4�3*0;,5*3H�3*5>0,4=�.0/I*03H�1*9:*03�961�*J5)96-*H�4,4:*�9.340954,6-H�7,6965*�3*0;,5*3�961�,6;*348*64�3*0;,5*3K�.>4�6/4�,65:>1,6-�>3*3�1*7,6*1�,6�L1>:4�M349.:,3)8*64A�NA�O>3*>83H�904�-9::*0,*3H�961�/4)*0�<>.:,5�/0�3*8,P<>.:,5�5>:4>09:�795,:,4,*3A�QA�R*49,:�.>3,6*33�/0�3*0;,5*�*349.:,3)8*64�3><<:=,6-�5/88/1,4,*3�/0�<*07/08,6-�3*0;,5*3H�3>5)�93H�/0�,6�5/8<94,.,:,4=�C,4)�961�,65:>1,6-�4)*�7/::/C,6-G�LA�F90.*0�S)/<@S9:/6�FA�F//I�34/0*H�6/4�,65:>1,6-�>3*3�1*7,6*1�,6�L1>:4�M349.:,3)8*64�DA�20=�5:*96,6-�961�:9>610=�<,5I><�2A�T:/09:�3)/<�MA�U,74�961�5>0,/�3)/<�TA�V*C*:0=�34/0*�UA�S4>1,/�W�2965*@X/-9�YA�(09;*:�9-*65,*3�ZA�[,1*/�34/0*H�6/4�,65:>1,6-�>3*3�1*7,6*1�,6�L1>:4�M349.:,3)8*64�\A�D/88>6,4=�5*64*0�]A� >̂.:,5�3*0;,5*3�_A�O*1,59:�/77,5*3�À�U*6*09:�/77,5*3�aA�M1>594,/69:�,634,4>4,/63�>61*0�4)*�3><*0;,3,/6�961�918,6,34094,/6�/7�9�<>.:,5�9-*65=��	#��#b�$��������� ���
�()*�7/::/C,6-�>3*3�90*�3>.?*54�4/�96=�5/61,4,/63�:,34*1�,6�4),3�c01,6965*�961�90*�3>.?*54�4/�/4)*0�5/61,4,/63�0*:94,6-�4/�4)*�<:95*8*64�/7�39,1�>3*�/6�9�3<*5,7,5�40954�/7�-0/>61�,6�4)*�+D�2,340,54�93�0*5/88*61*1�.=�4)*�̂:966,6-�D/88,33,/6�961�D,4=�D/>65,:�961�9<<0/;*1�.=�4)*�D,4=�D/>65,:A�EA�D/77**�d,/3I3�NA�L>4/894*1�(*::*0�O95),6*3�C)*6�6/4�C,4),6�4)*�,64*0,/0�/7�9�<0,890=�>3*�QA�D/6;*6,*65*�34/0*�C,4)�:,8,4*1�7>*:�39:*3A�\A�D)>05)*3�961�4*8<:*3�]A�D),:1590*�5*64*0�_A�2/-�19=�590*�À�T//1�S9:*3H�:,8,4*1�aA� >̂.:,5�961�<0,;94*�),-)*0�*1>594,/69:�,634,4>4,/63�3>5)�93�4091*�35)//:3H�5/::*-*3H�961�3*8,690,*3A�eA� >̂.:,5�961�<0,;94*�0*50*94,/6�>3*3�3>5)�93�<90I3H�5/>640=�5:>.3H�-/:7�5/>03*3H�:9I*3H�5/88/6�90*93H�961�3C,88,6-�<//:3�EfA�O>:4,<:*�T98,:=H�<0/;,1*1�,4�91)*0*3�4/�4)*�7/::/C,6-G�LA�L::�1C*::,6-�>6,43�3)9::�.*�/6�4)*�><<*0�7://03�FA� 9̂0I,6-�3)9::�.*�<0/;,1*1�4/�4)*�0*90�/7�4)*�.>,:1,6-�DA�M640965*3�3)9::�.*�904,5>:94*1�4)0/>-)�4)*�>3*�/7�905),4*54>09:�1*49,:,6-H�961�3)9::�.*�3*<9094*�70/8�/4)*0�>3*3�C,4),6�4)*�398*�340>54>0*��	#��#��B��&��������������g� ����EA�F>,:1,6-3�961�>3*3�5>34/890,:=�,65,1*649:�4/�4)*�<*08,44*1�>3*3A�NA� 9̂0I,6-�93�<*08,44*1�,6�S*54,/6�aAfE�4)0/>-)�aAf_A�QA�S,-63�9::/C*1�,6�S*54,/6�̀AfE�4)0/>-)�̀Af\A�\A�h961359<,6-�93�0*i>,0*1�.=�S*54,/6�eAfQ�]A�Z65,1*649:�<>.:,5�397*4=�>3*3�3>5)�93�*8*0-*65=�3,0*63��	#��#	� B��&������j�&!����g� ����(*8</090=�k3*3�0*i>,0*�9�<*08,4�70/8�4)*�D,4=�/7�U0*469�961�3)9::�.*�;9:,1�/6:=�7/0�9�3<*5,7,5�98/>64�/7�4,8*�93�,61,594*1�/6�39,1�<*08,4A�EA�(*8</090=�340>54>0*3�93�6**1*1�7/0�3,1*C9:I�961�/4)*0�/>41//0�39:*3�*;*643A�NA�F>,:1,6-3�961�>3*3�,65,1*649:�4/�5/6340>54,/6�C/0I�C),5)�3)9::�.*�0*8/;*1�></6�5/8<:*4,/6�/0�9.961/68*64�/7�4)*�5/6340>54,/6�C/0IA�QA�(*8</090=�340>54>0*�7/0�7*34,;9:3�/0�5/88*05,9:�*;*643A��

Gretna, NE

1212



��������	
����������������

�������������������������������������
���������������  	�

	!��! �"���#�����$���%�&'���(���
�)*�+,-�,-./,0�123�4.2.454�670�8-95.8-4-20:�:,166�;-�1:�<7667=:>������� $��������?@AB� $���C���#�?D�B� A����E����?D�B� @����E����?D�B� %����E����?D�B� @������@����E����?D�B� F�G!�"���#��?D�B� F�G!�$���H�I������J'�����KL(���I��'�������?MB�N-84.00-3�O:-:� PQRRR� S� PR� )R� )R� )T� UR� VRWXR�Y723.0.7216�O:-:� PQRRR� S� PR� )R� )R� )T� UR� VRWXR�� 	!��!������$�(�������
�)*�Z,-2�13[1\-20�07�8-:.3-20.166]�̂72-3�6123Q�27�_18̀.2/Q�38.a-:�78�:./2:�:,166�;-�=.0,.2�)T�<--0�7<�:5\,�3.:08.\0*�b580,-8478-Q�_-8412-20�:\8--2.2/�:,166�;-�_87a.3-3�.2�0,.:�18-1�.2�783-8�07�4.2.4.̂-�.4_1\0:�72�8-:.3-20.166]�̂72-3�_87_-80]Q�1:�_-8�c-\0.72�d*RT*�P*�ef0-8.78�6./,0.2/�<.f058-:�:,166�;-�:,13-3�:7�0,10�27�3.8-\0�6./,0�.:�\1:0�5_72�12]�8-:.3-20.16�_87_-80]�123�:7�0,10�27�/618-�.:�a.:.;6-�07�12]�081<<.\�72�12]�_5;6.\�:08--0*�U*�g-./,0�123�4.2.454�670�8-95.8-4-20:�7<�1\\-::78]�;5.63.2/:�18-�\72:.3-8-3�:14-�1:�0,-.8�1::7\.10-3�_-84.00-3�78�\723.0.7216�5:-*�� �

1313



10-6-1: CONDITIONS OF USE:
A. In order to provide an aesthetically pleasing atmosphere abutting the major streets and highways of the city and to

protect property values in this zone, all permitted, conditional and accessory uses in the neighborhood shopping district
(NS), central business district (CB), and highway oriented business district (HB) zone shall be subject to the following
conditions:

1. Prior to issuance of a commercial (nonresidential) building permit, the owner shall submit to the building official a
drawing or drawings showing the exterior views of the building, its position upon the property, location and sizes of parking
areas, plans for ingress and egress from the property onto the street, proposed elevations and drainage plans for the
building and property and proposed landscaping. The applicant's plans shall demonstrate compatibility with the existing
structures and applicable design standards. (Ord. 2408, 10-1-2012)

2. The building official shall transmit these plans and drawings to the planning commission. The planning commission
shall review and approve or disapprove the proposed plan. If disapproved, the planning commission shall inform the owner
or applicant of the revisions necessary for approval. The owner or applicant may resubmit the plan for review upon making
the required changes, and the planning commission shall then review and approve or disapprove the revised plan at its next
meeting. (Ord. 2408, 10-1-2012; amd. Ord. 2512, 4-6-2015)

3. Upon approval of the proposed plans, the building permit may be issued, and the owner shall construct and improve
the property in accordance with the approved plans. Any changes which the owner desires to make after initial approval
shall be submitted to the commission for its review and shall be subject to approval by the commission. (Ord. 2408, 10-1-
2012)

4. For the purpose of this section, upon the delivery to the planning commission of the documents required by
subsection A1 of this section, the planning commission shall set a meeting to review the documents within five (5) business
days. A quorum is needed for the review of these documents. Of those who attend, a simple majority may approve or
disapprove the plans or make recommendations for change. Any additional hearings required for further review shall be
scheduled within five (5) business days, unless the time frame is waived by the applicant. (Ord. 2408, 10-1-2012; amd. Ord.
2512, 4-6-2015)

ARTICLE A. NS NEIGHBORHOOD SHOPPING DISTRICT
SECTION:

10-6A-1: Intent

10-6A-2: Permitted Uses

10-6A-3: Conditional Uses

10-6A-4: Accessory Uses

10-6A-5: Density, Area And Height Regulations

10-6A-1: INTENT:
To establish areas or business facilities that transition with close proximity to residential areas, while minimizing any
undesirable impact of such uses in the neighborhood which they serve. (Ord. 2408, 10-1-2012)

10-6A-2: PERMITTED USES:
Alcohol sales, off-sale.

Assembly hall.

Assisted living.

Bakery.

Bed and breakfast.

Boarding house.

Boarding school.

Business service.

Childcare, preschool, nursery.

Coffeehouse.

Community garden.

Community residence.

Congregate care.

Convenience store.

Mitchell, SD

1414



Educational institution.

Electric vehicle charging stations (restricted, public and rapid charging).

Financial institutions.

Funeral home, mortuary.

Grocery store.

Historic site.

Hospice residential facility.

Lodging house.

Manufactured home community.

Multi-family dwellings.

Nursing home.

Office professional building.

Open space.

Parking facility.

Parks and playgrounds.

Personal health services.

Personal service facility.

Private club.

Public service.

Recreational indoor facility.

Religious institution.

Residential care.

Retail services and trade (footprint of principal structure 5,000 square feet or less).

Roadside stand.

Student housing (off campus).

Supportive living.

Temporary or emergency shelter. (Ord. 2408, 10-1-2012; amd. Ord. 2454, 11-4-2013; Ord. 2512, 4-6-2015)

10-6A-3: CONDITIONAL USES:
Automotive detailing shop.

Automotive repair.

Car wash, self-service.

Fuel dispensing station.

Fuel service station.

Outside storage.

Self-service storage facility if located along a collector or arterial public right of way. (Ord. 2408, 10-1-2012; amd. Ord. 2512,
4-6-2015)

10-6A-4: ACCESSORY USES:
Accessory buildings/uses.

Residential dwelling if accessory to the commercial activity and the residence of the proprietor. (Ord. 2408, 10-1-2012)

10-6A-5: DENSITY, AREA AND HEIGHT REGULATIONS:

Neighborhood
Shopping
District NS

Minimum
Lot Area

Minimum
Lot Width

Minimum
Front Yard

Minimum
Rear Yard

Minimum
Side Yard

Minimum
Side Yard
Corner Lot

Maximum
Zoning Lot
Coverage1

Maximum
Height

1515



6,000 sq.
ft. 60' 30' 20' 3' 20' 70%

21/2
stories or
35'

Note:

1. Structures may cover all of the zoning lot, except for required yards and parking and loading spaces and applicable
landscaping requirements set forth in this code.

A. Accessory Buildings:

1. An accessory building shall not be permitted in any required front yard and no separate accessory building shall be
erected within three feet (3') of any principal building's line.

2. Accessory buildings shall be at least three feet (3') from zoning lot lines of adjoining lots, footage to be measured
from the overhang building line.

3. On a corner lot they shall conform to the setback requirements on the side street, except in the case of an accessory
structure door parallel to the alley, the minimum yard requirement setback shall not be less than sixteen feet (16'). (Ord.
2408, 10-1-2012)

1616



CHAPTER 17.20: NC NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

Section

 17.20.010   General description.

 17.20.020   Uses permitted.

 17.20.030   Conditional uses.

 17.20.040   Temporary uses.

 17.20.050   Area regulations.

 17.20.060   Height regulations.

 17.20.070   Off-street parking.

 17.20.080   Screening requirements.

 17.20.090   Landscaping.

 17.20.100   Flood fringe building district.

17.20.010 General description.

   This district is established to provide areas in which the principal use of land is devoted to the neighborhood store or group
of stores serving the population of the immediate area.

(Prior code Appendix A, Art. IV (§ 9 (A)))

17.20.020 Uses permitted.

 Property and buildings in an NC neighborhood commercial district shall be used only for the following purposes:

1. Living and/or sleeping quarters shall be permitted only when constructed above the ground floor. No living and/or
sleeping quarters shall be permitted in any detached accessory building or structure on the same lot to the rear of any other
building;

2. Food markets including specialty foods such as:

a. Bakery goods;

b. Delicatessen goods; and

c. Meat market.

3. Drugstores or fountains including:

a. Book and reading matter;

b. Stationery;

c. Tobacco;

d. Vanity goods; and

e. Pharmacy.

4. Bakeries whose products are sold only at retail and on the premises;

5. Banks;

6. Barbershops and/or beauty shops;

7. Cleaning and pressing collection stations;

8. Gift shops;

9. Self-service laundries;

10. Service or filling stations;

11. Shoe repair and shoeshine services;

12. Professional and business offices;

13. Beer sales for consumption off the premises;

14. Nameplate and sign, as regulated in §§ 17.50.080 through 17.50.100;

Rapid City, SD

1717



15. Accessory buildings and uses customarily incidental to the preceding uses;

16. Hardware or home improvement retail establishments, provided all storage is within the enclosed retail structure;

17. Rental of video cassette equipment and tapes;

18. Other temporary retail business or structure as defined in § 17.50.230H; and

19. Dental clinics and medical clinics as defined in § 17.04.480B.

(Ord. 5869, 2012: Ord. 5679, 2010: Ord. 3518 (part), 1999: prior code Appendix A, Art. IV (§ 9 (B)))

17.20.030 Conditional uses.

A. New, used and rental car sales:

1. All such facilities shall be paved; and

2. Such facilities shall in no way be exempted from any of the requirements of this zoning district, including but not
limited to, screening, landscaping and signage requirements.

B. Child care centers;

C. Liquor sales for consumption off the premises; however, if denied, no further application shall be made for the same
property within 12 months;

D. Planned commercial developments as regulated in §§ 17.50.050 through 17.50.100;

E. Planned unit developments as regulated in §§ 17.50.050 through 17.50.100;

F. Establishments which prepare food for take-out by customers and/or for delivery. This shall not include drive-in
restaurants. Food consumption on the premises shall be permitted, provided that the customer eating areas do not exceed
749 square feet. Such establishments shall be designed to serve primarily the population of the immediate area;

G. Recreation establishments, including electronic video game arcades and poolrooms, which would intend to serve
primarily juvenile and young adult customers;

H. Drop-off centers for household recyclables; such centers do not involve processing;

I. Other uses which meet the intent of the district as determined by the Planning Commission. A site plan shall be
submitted and approved by the Planning Commission, which includes the following, as applicable:

1. Type of use proposed;

2. Parking and circulation plan;

3. Landscaping plan;

4. Screening plan; and

5. Other information which the Planning Commission may deem necessary to make a determination.

J. Off-premises signs in accordance with §§ 17.50.080 through 17.50.100 and the requirements of § 17.50.090;

K. Microcell wireless communications facilities on poles as defined in § 17.50.400B; and

L. Antique stores - retail sale of antique furniture, artwork, and collectible merchandise to the general public with no
outside display or storage.

(Ord. 5372, 2008: Ord. 5097 (part), 2005: Ord. 3760 (part), 2001: Ord. 3518 (part), 1999: Ord. 3098, 1994: Ord. 3004 (part),
1993: Ord. 2899 (part), 1991: prior code Appendix A, Art. IV (§ 9 (J)))

17.20.040 Temporary uses.

A. The Common Council shall have discretion to issue temporary use permits for a period not to exceed 1 year to allow a
use permitted in light industrial zoning districts provided the Council finds that the following criteria are met:

1. The structure for which the temporary use permit is to be granted is vacant and is expected to remain vacant if the
temporary use permit is not granted;

2. All area, setback and parking requirements of neighborhood commercial and light industrial zoning districts are met
without the granting of a variance;

3. The proposed use does not produce more noise, dust, odor, vibration, blast or traffic than uses specifically permitted
in neighborhood commercial zoning districts; and

4. The granting of a temporary use permit is in the best interests of the city.

B. Temporary use permits issued under this section shall not be renewed more than twice.

1818



C. The procedure for granting temporary use permits under this section shall be the same procedure as for authorizing
conditional use permits as established under § 17.54.030.

(Ord. 3760 (part), 2001: prior code Appendix A, Art. IV (§ 9 (G)))

17.20.050 Area regulations.

 The following requirements shall apply to all uses permitted in this district:

A. Front yard. All buildings shall set back from the street right-of-way lines not less than 25 feet.

B. Side yard. On the side of a lot adjoining a residential district there shall be a side yard of not less than 25 feet. There
shall be a side yard setback from an intersection street of not less than 25 feet. In all other cases, a side yard for a
commercial building shall not be required.

C. Rear yard. There shall be a rear yard, alley, service court or combination thereof, of not less than 30 feet in depth, and
all of the service areas of all buildings shall be completely screened from public view with permanent ornamental screening
materials.

D. Setback from section lines. Principal and accessory buildings and structures shall be set back no less than 58 feet
from any section line. No setback is required from any legally vacated section line; however, if the vacated section line forms
a property line, the applicable side, rear or front yard setbacks shall be observed.

E. Maximum lot coverage. No building or buildings shall cover more than 30% of the lot area.

(Ord. 3744 (part), 2001: prior code Appendix A, Art. IV (§ 9 (C)))

17.20.060 Height regulations.

   No building shall exceed 2½ stories, or 35 feet in height, except as provided in § 17.50.260.

(Prior code Appendix A, Art. IV (§ 9 (D)))

17.20.070 Off-street parking.

   As regulated in § 17.50.270.

(Prior code Appendix A, Art. N (§ 9 (E)))

17.20.080 Screening requirements.

   When a neighborhood commercial zoning district abuts a residential district, an opaque ornamental screening fence not
less than 5 nor more than 6 feet in height shall be constructed along the adjoining property lines and shall be maintained in
good condition. The screening fence shall consist of an opaque fence not to include chain link fencing with slats. Only a 4-
foot high fence may be located in the front yard or side yard abutting a street. No fences shall encroach into sight triangles.
The Director may grant an exception to allow the relocation and/or elimination of the screening fence along the property line
when there is a conflict due to easements, topography, drainage, floodplain, or other issues.

(Ord. 6299 (part), 2019: Ord. 3872 (part), 2002: prior code Appendix A, Art. IV (§ 9 (H)))

17.20.090 Landscaping.

   When a neighborhood commercial district is adjacent to a residential district, landscaping shall be provided as regulated in
the landscape regulations adopted by § 17.50.300. Fifty percent of the plant material shall be visible from the residential
district whenever possible.

(Prior code Appendix A, Art. IV (§ 9 (I)))

17.20.100 Flood fringe building district.

   Any land that is within the flood fringe building district as provided for in Chapter 15.32 of this code must comply with the
additional requirements of that district.

(Prior code Appendix A, Art. IV (§ 9 (F)))

1919



������������	
	��������������
����	��������
��
�

������� 	����������������� �
���� ������!�

"#$%&'(�)*+),�"-)�./"0.�"/1123"40.�546734"7�6'8&9:;�� � � � � � � � � <=>?@�AB�CADE�?BFAEFAGH���I� ��� �JKLBGE���I� ��� �EKMCAAEN��GEG���I� ��� �BFNCACBF>D��GEG���I� �!� 
KE>�>FN��JD@��EOJCKEMEFAG��)*+),P*Q��RS3R/62� � � � � � � � <=>?@�AB��T>LAEK�?BFAEFAGH��I�B�LKBUCNE�VBK�FECWT=BKTBBN�DB?>D�KEA>CD�>FN�GEKUC?E�JGEG�AT>A�GEKUE�ATE�N>X�AB�N>X�FEENG�BV�KEGCNEFAG�CF�?BFUEFCEFA�>FN�>LLKBLKC>AE�DB?>ACBFGI��I�B�LEKMCA�NEUEDBLMEFA�BV�FECWT=BKTBBN�DB?>D�GTBLLCFW�V>?CDCACEG�>G�NEGCWF>AEN�CF�ATE��BMLKETEFGCUE��>FN��GE��D>FI�<�KN��!Y�!Z��EU���Y� Y�!H��)*+),P)Q��R23147725�S626� � � � � � � <=>?@�AB��T>LAEK�?BFAEFAGH��I�	ECWT=BKTBBN��EA>CD��GA>=DCGTMEFAGI��I�
JABMB=CDE�L>K@CFW�DBAI��I��>F@�BK�VCF>F?C>D�CFGACAJACBFI�!I��EKUC?E��GA>=DCGTMEFAGI�[I��J=DC?��ACDCACEG�\TC?T�GEKUE�ATE�KEGCNEFA�LBLJD>ACBFI�<�KN��!Y�!Z��EU���Y� Y�!H� I��VVC?E�<�JCDNCFWHI��)*+),P]Q��"/̂ 5474/̂ 0.�S626�� � � � � � <=>?@�AB��T>LAEK�?BFAEFAGH��I��>K��>GT�<>JABM>AC?�BK�GEMCY>JABM>AC?HI��I��EKUC?E��A>ACBF����BABK��ETC?DEI���I��BAED_�BAEDI�!I��>K�BK�>UEKFI�[I��EGA>JK>FAI� I��>X��>KE��>?CDCAX�<	BFYKEGCNEFAC>DHI�Ì�
GGCGAEN��CUCFW��EFAEK�<�KN�� Y��Z�
NN���Y�[Y�̀H��I��DCFC?��<�KN�� Y��Z�
NN���Y�[Y�̀H��I�abcdefg�hijbkl�mniojpjoqer�qijbk�sqkb�tg�rgkk�buei�cd�gvqer�bc�mwx�kjy�uqiodgo�mz{{x�k|x���I��JFEK>KX��EKUC?E�<�KN���Y�!}��EU��!Y��Y��H���I��ATEK�JGEG�\TC?T�CF�ATE�BLCFCBF�BV�ATE��B>KN�BV�
N~JGAMEFA�>KE�BV�ATE�G>ME�WEFEK>D�?T>K>?AEKI�<�KN��̀Y��Z��EU���Y��Y�̀H��)*+),P�Q��0320�0̂ 5��S.��32�S43212̂ 76�� � � � <=>?@�AB��T>LAEK�?BFAEFAGH��EE���I������JMM>KX�BV��CGAKC?A��EWJD>ACBFG���DCMCACFW�ATE�TECWTA�>FN�=JD@�BV�=JCDNCFWG��ATE�MCFCMJM�GC�E�BV�DBA�LEKMCAAEN�=X�D>FN�JGE��>FN�M>�CMJM�NEFGCAX�LEKMCAAEN��>FN�LKBUCNCFW�MCFCMJM�DBA�KEOJCKEMEFAGZ�>FN���I �������VVY�AKEEA��>K@CFWI��<�KN��!Y�!Z��EU���Y� Y�!H��

Watertown, SD

2020



������������	
	��������������
����	��������
��
�

������� 	����������������� �
������������ �

!"#$%&�"'�()*"+,-�.�/01�02�345036�78�.�/01�9:75:�78�;.31�02�.�8<=67>7870?�03�.�543172746�8<3>4@�A.;�9:75:�:.8�=44?�34503646�7?�1:4�022754�02�1:4��0<?1@��4B78143�02��4468C�03�.�;.354/�02�/.?6��1:4�6446�10�9:75:�9.8�34503646�7?�1:4�022754�02�1:4��0<?1@��4B78143�02��4468�;3703�10�1:4�4224517>4�6.14�02�1:4�0367?.?54D�EFGH#FGH-�10�.//09�.?@�87B?�10�4I781�03�34A.7?��03�10�34;.73�03�342<3=78:�.�87B?�10�;34>4?1�645.@�03�64143703.170?D�EFHJ'F*#J+),�K"L)-�.�694//7?B�<?71�2.=375.146�7?�.?�022M8714�A.?<2.51<37?B�2.57/71@�203�7?81.//.170?�03�.884A=/@�.1�1:4�=<7/67?B�8714��=4.37?B�.�84./�543172@7?B�1:.1�71�78�=<7/1�7?�50A;/7.?54�971:�1:4��4643./��.?<2.51<346��0<87?B��0?813<5170?�.?6��.241@��1.?6.368��064D�EF+NJ)-�.?@�;43A.?4?1�3002M/7O4�813<51<34�;30P4517?B�=4@0?6�.�=<7/67?B�03�4I14?67?B�./0?B�.?6�;30P4517?B�=4@0?6�1:4�9.//�02�1:4�=<7/67?B��B4?43.//@�6487B?46�.?6�50?813<5146�10�;30>764�;30145170?�230A�1:4�94.1:43D�E)%%FQ)-�.�50AA<?75.170?�1:30<B:�937114?�90368��8@A=0/8��87B?./8��03�;751<348D�EGHGHQ-�:4�4I5.>.170?�02�4.31:�A.1437./8�203�1:4�;<3;084�02�8./4D�E"RGS)�K"L)-�.�13.?8;031.=/4�813<51<34�/.3B43�1:.?�1:344�:<?6346�194?1@�TU��V�8W<.34�2441��6487B?46�10�=4�<846�.8�.�@4.3�30<?6�348764?17./�694//7?B��.?6�=<7/1�;3703�10�1:4�4?.51A4?1�02�1:4��4643./��0=7/4��0A4��0?813<5170?�.?6��.241@�
51�02���� ��9:75:�=45.A4�4224517>4�203�.//�A0=7/4�:0A4�50?813<5170?�X<?4��Y�����ZD�E"RGS)�K"L)�[F+\-�.?@�8714�03�13.51�02�/.?6�<;0?�9:75:�1:344�TUV�03�A034�055<;746�A0=7/4�:0A48�.34�/05.146�34B.36/488�02�1:4�5:.3B4�03�.=84?54�02�5:.3B4�203�.550AA06.170?8D�E",JSF+�]"H%#+J*#G"H-�50A;/414/@�2.=375.146�.?6�T;.31/@V�.884A=/46�<?718�03�4/4A4?18�64/7>4346�10�=4�4345146�0?�.�8714�10�203A�.�9:0/4�03�;.31�02�.�813<51<34D�E",JSF+�K"L)%-�.�A06</.3�:0A4�8:.//�A441�1:4�20//097?B�34B</.170?8̂��D��06</.3�:0A48�8:.//�A441�03�4I5446������0648D��D��06</.3�:0A48�97//�7?5/<64�.//�022M8714�50?813<5170?�:0A48��9:75:�A.@�=4�13.?8;03146�10�1:4�8714�7?�0?4�03�A034�845170?8D� T=.5O�10�71/4�50?14?18V�UD��06</.3�:0A48�8:.//�:.>4�A034�1:.?�0?4�1:0<8.?6�T�����V�8W<.34�2441�7?�3.?5:�81@/4�.?�47B:1�:<?6346�2721@�T�Y�V�8W<.34�2441�8;/71�.?6�=4�;/.546�0?�.�;43A.?4?1�20<?6.170?D�:4�20<?6.170?�8:.//�=4�10�.�64;1:�=4/09�1:4�23081�/7?4D� D��06</.3�:0A48�8:.//�:.>4�.�A7?7A<A�02�.�U_���3002�;715:D�YD��.>4�>7?@/�03�9006�/.;�8767?B�A.1437./�02�.�1@;4�5<810A.37/@�<846�0?�8714M50?813<5146�348764?548D�ZD��.>4�30027?B�A.1437./�02�.�1@;4�5<810A.37/@�<846�0?�8714M50?813<5146�348764?548D�E"HJL)H#�̀GQH-�844��30<?6��7B?D�E"+#JF+G)%-�.�;/.54�203�1:4�8103.B4�02�:<A.?�=06748�;3703�10�1:473�=<37./�03�534A.170?D��<5:�<84�8:.//�=4�6487B?46�.?6�/05.146�80�1:.1�1:4�.35:71451<3./�.;;4.3.?54�.?6�13.2275�B4?43.146�=@�1:4�<84�97//�?01�:.>4�.�64137A4?1./�422451�0?�.6P.54?1�;30;431@�>./<48D�E"#)SaK"#)S-�.�=<7/67?B�03�B30<;�02�=<7/67?B8�<846�;37A.37/@�203�1:4�14A;03.3@�348764?54�02�A01037818�03�13.>4/438D�E"#G"H�̀GQH-�.?@�87B?�9:75:�34>0/>48��301.148��03�A0>48�7?�.?@�9.@�=@�A45:.?75./�A4.?8D�bFL)cSF#)�̀GQH-�.?@�87B?�9:75:�7?5/<648�1:4�?.A4�.?6�.663488�02�1:4�055<;.?1�02�1:4�/01�03�=<7/67?B�9:434�1:4�87B?�78�;/.546�.?6�A.@�7?5/<64�.�67345103@�/7817?B�1:4�?.A4��02�055<;.?18D�b)GQdR"+d"",�()#FGS�e%#FRSG%dL)H#-�B4?43.//@�3450B?7f46�341.7/�=<87?488�9:75:�8<;;/748�50AA0671748�0?�1:4�;34A7848�203�;4380?8�348767?B�7?�.6P.54?1�348764?17./�.34.8��8<5:�.8�=<1�?01�/7A7146�10̂�B30543748��A4.18��6.73@�;306<518��=.O46�B0068�03�01:43�20068��63<B8��63@�B0068��5/01:7?B�.?6�?0170?8�03�:.369.34D�b"H*"H'"+LGHQ�g%)-�.?@�=<7/67?B��813<51<34�03�<84�02�/.?6�9:75:�6048�?01�50?203A�10�1:4�34B</.170?8�02�1:4�67813751�03�f0?4�7?�9:75:�71�78�871<.146D�b"HhGSSJLGHF#),�̀GQH-�.�87B?�01:43�1:.?�.?�7//<A7?.146�87B?�03�342/4517>4�87B?�9:75:�78�>787=/4�;37A.37/@�=@�A4.?8�02�.�?.1<3./�/7B:1�80<354D�b"Hh+)%G,)H#GFS-�;30;431@�<846�203�.?@1:7?B�01:43�1:.?�:0<87?B_694//7?B_:.=71.170?D�
�=<7/67?B�1:.1�78�?01�/7>46�7?��9:434�?0�0?4�3487648D��
2121



DRAFT
ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BRANDON, SD, AMENDING THE BRANDON 
ZONING ORDINANCE TO INCLUDE A NB: NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF BRANDON, SD: 
 
Section 1. That the numbering of every Chapter of the Brandon Zoning Ordinance be hereby 
sequentially renumbered beginning with Chapter 15-9 as follows: 
 

Current Chapter Renumbered Chapter 
Chapter 15-9 – GB: General Business District Chapter 15-10 
Chapter 15-10 – LI: Light Industrial District Chapter 15-11 
Chapter 15-11 – HI: Heavy Industrial District Chapter 15-12 
Chapter 15-12 – IN: Institutional District Chapter 15-13 
Chapter 15-13 – PD: Planned Development District Chapter 15-14 
Chapter 15-14 – Additional Use Regulations Chapter 15-15 
Chapter 15-15 – Adjustments to Yard Regulations Chapter 15-16 
Chapter 15-16 – Non-Conforming Uses and Non-Standard Lots Chapter 15-17 
Chapter 15-17 – Administration and Enforcement Chapter 15-18 
Chapter 15-18 – Building Permits and Fees Chapter 15-19 
Chapter 15-19 – Board of Adjustment Chapter 15-20 
Chapter 15-20 – Amendments and Change of Zone Chapter 15-21 
Chapter 15-21 – Conditional Use Permits Chapter 15-22 
Chapter 15-22 – Definitions Chapter 15-23 

 
The purpose and intent of Section 1 of this Ordinance is to leave Chapter 15-9 as a vacant 
placeholder for the adoption of Section 6 of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 2. That the numbering of every Chapter, Subchapter, and internal citation referenced 
within the Brandon Zoning Ordinance be renumbered to reflect the renumbering pattern adopted 
as part of Section 1 of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 3. That Chapter 15-2-1(D) of the Brandon Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 
 

D.  One (1) or more principal Permitted or Conditional Uses are allowed per lot 
in the CB, NB, GB, LI, HI, and IN Districts so long as each principal 
building meets the zoning district’s minimum setback requirements. 
Accessory buildings, structures, and land uses are allowed in conformance 
with Chapter 15-15-2. 

 

2222



DRAFT
Section 4. That Chapter 15-2-2 of the Brandon Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 
15-2-2   DISTRICTS DESIGNATED 
   The City is hereby divided into the following districts: 
 
   NRC Natural Resource Conservation 
   R-1 Residential – Low Density 
   R-2 Residential – Medium Density 
   R-3 Residential – High Density 
   R-4 Residential – Manufactured Housing 
   CB Central Business 
   NB Neighborhood Business 
   GB General Business 
   LI Light Industrial 
   HI Heavy Industrial 
   IN Institutional 
   PD Planned Development 
 
Section 5. That the “See Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 15-15) and Non-Conforming 
Uses and Non-Standard Lots (Chapter 15-16) for specific exceptions.” Language in Chapters 15-
3-11, 15-4-11, 15-5-11, 15-6-11, 15-7-11, 15-8-10, 15-9-10, 15-10-10, 15-11-10, 15-12-10, and 
15-13-10 shall be amended to read, “See Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 15-16) and 
Non-Conforming Uses and Non-Standard Lots (Chapter 15-17) for specific exceptions.” 
 
Section 6. That Section 15-9 of the Brandon Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

 
CHAPTER 15-9 

NB: NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 

15-9-1 PURPOSE 
 
15-9-2 PERMITTED USES 
 Lots in the NB District may be used for one (1) or more of the following 

principal land uses: 
 

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 
  
  

 
 

2323



DRAFT
15-9-3 CONDITIONAL USES 
 One (1) or more of the following principal land uses may be allowed per lot 

after review and approval of a conditional use permit by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission: 

 
Conditional Use Applicable Standards 
  
  

 
15-9-4 PROHIBITED PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS AND LAND USES 
 Unless authorized pursuant to Chapter 15-2-1(A)(1)(a), all other buildings and 

land uses that are not specifically listed above as either a Permitted or 
Conditional Use shall be prohibited in the NB District. 

 
15-9-5 ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, AND LAND USES 
 Accessory buildings, structures, and land uses permitted within the NB District 

shall be regulated in conformance with the provisions of Chapter 15-15-2. 
 
15-9-6 FENCE REGULATIONS 
 Fences within the NB District shall be regulated in conformance with the 

provisions of Chapter 15-15-6. 
 
15-9-7 ACCESSORY WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS 
 Accessory wind energy conversion systems within the NB District shall be 

regulated in conformance with the provisions of Chapter 15-15-14. 
 
15-9-8 OFF-STREET PARKING REGULATIONS 
 Off-street parking within the NB District shall be regulated in conformance with 

the provisions of Chapter 15-15-3. 
 
15-9-9 SIGN REGULATIONS 
 Signs within the NB District shall be regulated in conformance with the 

provisions of Chapter 15-15-5. 
 
15-9-10 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 
 The minimum lot area, minimum lot width, setback requirements, and 

maximum building height within the NB District shall be as follows: 
 

 Minimum 
Lot 

Area 

Minimum 
Lot 

Width 

Front 
Yard 

Setback 

Side 
Yard 

Setback 

Rear 
Yard 

Setback 

Maximum 
Building 
Height 

       
All Other Uses       

 

2424



DRAFT
All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions). 
 
Exceptions 
 
#X See also Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 15-16) and Non-Conforming Uses 

and Non-Standard Lots (Chapter 15-17) for other specific exceptions. 

2525



CHAPTER 15-9 
 GB:  GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 
15-9-1  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this district is to provide a commercial area for those establishments serving 
the general shopping needs of the trade area, with specific attention to the carrying capacity 
of roads and streets, and to encourage provision of adequate off-street parking and loading 
space. It is not the intent of this district to encourage the extension or enlargement of strip 
commercial areas. 

 
Legislative History: Authority: 

      Ordinance #566, 9/25/18        SDCL § Ch. 9 
 
 
15-9-2                    PERMITTED USES 

Lots in the GB District may be used for one (1) or more of the following principal land 
uses: 
  

Permitted Use Applicable Standards 

Retail Trade or 
Service 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Office All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Personal Service 
Establishment 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Hotel/Motel All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Gasoline Dispensing 
Station 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Motor Vehicle 
Service Station 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Printing Plant All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Hospital/Clinic All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Mortuary All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Private Club All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

House of Worship All parking lots shall be at least eight (8) feet from all 
residentially zoned or used lots. 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Arcade All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Greenhouse/Nursery All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Drive-In Theater All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Curr
en

t O
rdi

na
nc

e

2626



Car Wash Five (5) storage spaces for each bay beyond off-street parking 
requirements and the water from the car wash contained on 
the lot. 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Motor Vehicle Sales, 
Display, and Rental 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Farm Store/Feed 
Store 

Subject to only accessory storage of fertilizer or farm 
chemicals on the lot. 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Commercial 
Recreation Facility 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Off-Sale Alcoholic 
Beverage 
Establishment 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Farmer’s Market All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 
Subject to Brandon City Ordinances Chapter 6-3. 

Neighborhood Utility 
Facility 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

 
Legislative History: Authority: 
Ordinance #445, 5/27/09 SDCL § Ch. 9 

   Ordinance #531, 5/10/16 
   Ordinance #566, 9/25/18 
   Ordinance #584, 6/19/19 
   Ordinance #626, 5/5/2021 
 
 
15-9-3 CONDITIONAL USES 

One (1) or more of the following principal land uses may be allowed per lot after review 
and approval of a conditional use permit by the Planning & Zoning Commission: 

  
Conditional Use Applicable Standards 

Adult Oriented 
Business 

Subject to SDCL 11-12 and Brandon City Ordinances 
Chapters 8-6 through 8-9. 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Electrical Substation An opaque screen, six (6) feet in height shall be located at 
all setback lines. 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

On-Sale Alcoholic 
Beverage 
Establishment 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Wireless 
Communication 
Facility on Existing 
Support Structure/Base 
Station 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Curr
en

t O
rdi

na
nc

e

2727



Wireless 
Telecommunications  
Tower 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Day Care Center Adequate and safe playground area with fence four (4) feet 
high. 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Veterinarian No outdoor kenneling of dogs within one thousand (1,000) 
feet of a residential district. * 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Dwellings Shall be above the first floor. 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Bus Passenger 
Terminal  

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Lumberyard  All parts and accessories must be screened from view. 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Farm Implement Sales, 
Display, and Service 

All outdoor storage must be screened from view. 
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Bus/Truck Terminal All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Campground Lot must contain at least two thousand (2,000) square feet 
and be supplied with city water and sanitary sewer services; 
access road on the campground site shall be paved or 
surfaced in a similar manner to the adjacent public roads, 
shall be approved by the City, and shall be fourteen (14) 
feet for one-way and twenty (20) feet for two-way roads.
  
All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Commercial Kennel All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Public Utility Facility All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 shall apply. 

Medical Cannabis 
Dispensary or Testing 
Facility 

All relevant standards within Chapter 15-14 and 
requirements of Chapter 17 shall apply. 
 

   * measured from the closest point of the outside walls of both structures. 
 

Legislative History: Authority: 
Ordinance #445, 5/27/09 SDCL § Ch. 9 

   Ordinance #531, 5/10/16 
Ordinance #538, 10/25/16  

      Ordinance #566, 9/25/18 
      Ordinance #584, 6/19/19 
      Ordinance #626, 5/5/21 
      Ordinance #638, 9/29/21 
      Ordinance #646, 12/15/21 
 
15-9-4    PROHIBITED PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS AND LAND USES 
     Unless authorized pursuant to Chapter 15-2-1(A)(1)(a), all other buildings and land uses 

that are not specifically listed above as either a Permitted or Conditional Use shall be 
prohibited in the GB District. 

Curr
en

t O
rdi

na
nc

e

2828



 
Legislative History: Authority: 

      Ordinance #566, 9/25/18        SDCL § Ch. 9 
 

15-9-5    ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, AND LAND USES 
      Accessory buildings, structures, and land uses permitted within the GB District shall be 

regulated in conformance with the provisions of Chapter 15-14-2. 
 

Legislative History: Authority: 
      Ordinance #566, 9/25/18        SDCL § Ch. 9 
      Ordinance #584, 6/19/19 
 
 
15-9-6    FENCE REGULATIONS 
      Fences within the GB District shall be regulated in conformance with the provisions of 

Chapter 15-14-6. 
 

Legislative History: Authority: 
      Ordinance #566, 9/25/18        SDCL § Ch. 9 
      Ordinance #584, 6/19/19 
 
 
15-9-7    ACCESSORY WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEM  

Accessory wind energy conversion systems within the GB district shall be regulated in 
conformance with the provisions of Chapter 15-14-14. 
 
Legislative History: Authority: 

      Ordinance #566, 9/25/18        SDCL § Ch. 9 
      Ordinance #584, 6/19/19 

 
 

15-9-8    OFF-STREET PARKING REGULATIONS 
      Off-street parking within the GB District shall be regulated in conformance with the 

provisions of Chapter 15-14-3. 
 

Legislative History: Authority: 
      Ordinance #566, 9/25/18        SDCL § Ch. 9 
      Ordinance #584, 6/19/19 
 
 
15-9-9    SIGN REGULATIONS 

Signs within the GB District shall be regulated in conformance with the provisions of 
Chapter 15-14-5. 

 
Legislative History: Authority: 

      Ordinance #566, 9/25/18        SDCL § Ch. 9 
      Ordinance #584, 6/19/19 
 
 
15-9-10 LOT AND YARD REGULATIONS 

The minimum lot area, minimum lot width, setback requirements, and maximum building 
height within the GB District shall be as follows: 
 

 Minimum 
Lot 

Area 

Minimum 
Lot 

Width 

Front 
Yard 

Setback 

Side 
Yard 

Setback 

Rear 
Yard 

Setback 

Maximum 
Building 
Height 

Curr
en

t O
rdi

na
nc

e

2929



Stripmall NA 25 feet 25 feet 
see #4 

7 feet 
see #1, 
#2, #5 

5 feet 
see #3 

45 feet 

Stripmall; 
Individually 
Platted Lots 
Surrounded by 
Commonly 
Owned Space 

NA 25 feet* 25 feet* 
see #4, 
#5 

7 feet* 
see #1, 
#2, #5 

5 feet* 
see #3, 
#5 

45 feet 

All Other Uses NA 60 feet 25 feet 
see #4 

7 feet    
see #1, 
#2 

5 feet 
see #3 

45 feet 

 
* These requirements apply to the commonly owned space surrounding the individually 
platted lots. For setbacks related to the individually platted units located thereon, see 
Exception #5 below. 
 
All measurements shall be taken from the lot line to the building line (see definitions). 
 
Exceptions 

 
#1. The side yard setback(s) shall be increased to twenty (20) feet when the building 

exceeds thirty-five (35) feet in height. 
 

#2 A side yard setback of fifteen (15) feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to 
or abuts a residential district. A fence, wall, berm, or shrubbery six (6) feet in 
height and of a character necessary for adequate screening of a GB property from 
an abutting or adjacent R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-4 property shall be provided. 

 
#3.  A rear yard of twenty (20) feet shall be required where a lot is adjacent to or abuts 

a residential district. A fence, wall, berm, or shrubbery six (6) feet in height and 
of a character necessary for adequate screening of a GB property from an abutting 
or adjacent R-1, R-2, R-3, or R-4 property shall be provided. 

 
#4. The front yard setback on lots abutting a public street shall be twenty-five (25) 

feet. If the lot contains or abuts a private street/mutual access easement, the front 
yard setback(s) shall be fifteen (15) feet measured from the edge of the sidewalk 
easement that is closest to the structure. 

 
#5 Zero lot line option: Stripmalls held in common ownership and located on a single 

lot shall observe the standard side setback rules prescribed above. However, the 
lot may be subdivided into separate lots upon which individual retail or trade 
establishments are located if the lots to be created through the subdivision process 
are individually platted. In such event, the setbacks for the individually platted 
lots shall be as follows:  

 
1. Front Yard Setback: Zero (0) feet. 
2. Rear Yard Setback: Zero (0) feet. 
3. Side Yard Setback: Zero (0) feet. 

 

Curr
en

t O
rdi

na
nc

e

3030



Stripmalls composed of two (2) or more individually platted lots already utilizing 
the zero lot line option described above shall not be considered Non-Conforming 
pursuant to Chapter 15-16. 
 
This exception only applies if the individually platted lots are surrounded by a 
space commonly owned by the owners of the individually platted lots. The 
commonly owned space surrounding the individually platted lots shall meet all 
applicable requirements found in the Lot and Yard Regulations table above. 

 
#6. See also Adjustment to Yard Regulations (Chapter 15-14) and Non-Conforming 

Uses and Non-Standard Lots (Chapter 15-15) for other specific exceptions. 
 
 

Legislative History: Authority: 
Ordinance #445, 5/27/09 SDCL § Ch. 9 

    Ordinance #531, 5/10/16 
Ordinance #566, 9/25/18 
Ordinance #584, 6/19/19 
Ordinance #603, 5/6/20 
Ordinance #624, 5/5/2021 

  
 

Curr
en

t O
rdi

na
nc

e

3131


	1 09-22-22 SM P&Z agenda cover page
	4 09-15-22 P&Z meeting minutes
	6a Examples
	Aberdeen, SD Code of Ordinances
	Belle Fourche, SD Code of Ordinances
	Gretna-Zoning-Code-2020
	mitchellsd-sd-1
	rapidcity-sd-1 (1)
	Title-21---City-of-Watertown-Ordinance-Book
	Watertown Definition

	6b Draft Ord _______ NB Zoning District_9-9-2022
	6c General Business District



